
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190; Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080, Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

 

 

    

  

 

                                                                                                                                                                                          
 

AGENDA 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

Regular Board Meeting 

 Tuesday, July 26, 2016 

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 

 
   9:00 AM Call to Order  

   Approval of Minutes 

 July 19, 2016 Board Meeting 

 

   Review Agenda 

 

Consent Agenda  

      

Facilities 

a. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 110  

Fairgrounds 

b. Contract w/Apollo Sheet Metal, Inc. for Installation of Lennox Unit 

c. Contract w/Big D’s Construction of Tri-Cities, Inc. for Installation of Water Supply System 

Human Services 

d. Amendment D w/WA State Dept of Commerce, Community Services & Housing Division  

e. Termination Letter for Greater Columbia Behavioral Health Contracts 

Juvenile 

f. Contract w/J Blanco for Functional Family Therapy  

g. Payment Authorization to Tyco SimplexGrinnell System for Fire Alarm Monitoring  

Public Safety  

h. Agreement w/Safe Harbor Crisis Nursery for My Friends Place for Overnight Youth Shelter 

Public Works 

i. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0101-101, Dept. 500    

Sheriff 

j. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 125 

k. Agreement w/City of Kennewick for Use of Kennewick Firearms Range Facility 

l. Contract Extension w/Energy Northwest for Law Enforcement Services 

 

Public Hearing (hearing to be cancelled)  

 

Supplemental Appropriation ~ L Smith Kelty 

 

Scheduled Business 

 

LFO Impact Update ~ L Smith-Kelty & Team 

 

Road Construction Closure ~ M Rasmussen   

 

Old Engineering Building Renovation Design ~ F Bowen 

 

Quarterly Finance Update ~ P Schut 

Jerome Delvin 
District 1 

Shon Small 
District 2 

James Beaver 
District 3 

Board of County Commissioners 
BENTON COUNTY 

David Sparks 
County Administrator 

 
Loretta Smith Kelty 

Deputy County Administrator             

mailto:commissioners@co.benton.wa.us
WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Text Box
To view items in detail, please click on the highlighted area. 

WEH
Highlight



Agenda - Board of County Commissioners 

July 26, 2016 

Page 2 

 

 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190;   Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080,   Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

 

 

Unscheduled Visitors 

   Other Business   
 

Executive Session 

  

Pending Litigation ~ R Brown 

mailto:commissioners@co.benton.wa.us


 - 1 - 

MINUTES 

 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 

Regular Board Meeting 

Tuesday, July 19, 2016, 9:00 a.m. 

Commissioners’ Conference Room  

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 

 

 

Present: Chairman Shon Small 

  Commissioner Jerome Delvin 

  Commissioner James Beaver 

  County Administrator David Sparks   

  Clerk of the Board Cami McKenzie 

 

Benton County Employees Present During All or a Portion of the Meeting: Deputy 

Administrator Loretta Smith Kelty; Adam Fyall, Sustainable Development Manager; County 

Engineer Matt Rasmussen; Assistant County Engineer Robert Blain; Planning Manager Mike 

Shuttleworth; DPA Ryan Brown; Auditor Brenda Chilton; Clerk Josie Delvin; District Court 

Administrator Jacki Lahtinen; Shyanne Faulconer, Community Programs/PR Coordinator; Judge 

Bob Swisher; DPA Ryan Lukson; Judge Alex Ekstrom; Superior Court Administrator Pat Austin; 

Public Services Administrator Fred Bowen; WSU/Benton County Manager Marianne Ophardt; 

WSU/Benton County Gwen-Alyn Hoheisel, WSU Benton County; Clark Posey, Planning.   

 

Approval of Minutes 

 

The Minutes of July 12, 2016 were approved.   

 

Consent Agenda 

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Delvin moved to approve the consent agenda items “a” through “p”.  

Commissioner Beaver seconded and upon vote, the Board approved the following: 

 

Commissioners 

a. Closing Funds & Adding Replacement Funds to ICMA Retirement Corporate Accounts 

Juvenile 

b. 1st Amended Agreement w/NCourt LLC    

c. Grant Application w/DSHS for Juvenile Detention Alternatives Initiative 

Office of Public Defense 

d. District Court Public Defense Services Agreement w/M Prince 

e. District Court Public Defense Services Agreement w/A Pechtel for Overflow Cases 

f. Amended Public Defense Services Interlocal Agreement w/City of W Richland for Billing 

of Costs w/Mental Health Court  

g. Amended Public Defense Services Interlocal Agreement w/City of Prosser for Billing of 

Costs w/Mental Health Court 



 - 2 - 

Public Safety  

h. Agreement w/Kiona-Benton City School District for Crime Prevention Program  

Public Works 
i. Establishing New Speed Limit on Clodfelter Road 

j. Contract w/ B.C.V., for Hanks Road & CR12 Pathway Asphalt Repair 

k. Accepting Work Performed by B.C.V., for Fall 2015 Crack Seal Project 

l. Accepting Work Performed by Fowler General Construction for Kennewick Maintenance 

Facility  

Sheriff   

m. Salary Request Statement 

n. Salary Request Statement 

o. Salary Request Statement    

Treasurer 

p. Approval of Disbursements from the Historical Preservation Fund 

 

Benton County IT Interlocal Agreement 

 

Judge Swisher, Judge Ekstrom and Pat Austin updated the Board on the IT interlocal agreement 

with Franklin County.  Ms. Austin said they had been working since last summer with the counties 

to arrive at an interlocal satisfactory to both counties based on what they needed to accomplish 

their daily business as a bi-county judicial district.  She said they were not involved in the financial 

information but were working with Loretta Smith Kelty, Keith Johnson and IT staff in both 

counties.  She said it was currently out for final legal review and they were getting close to bringing 

it to the Board for its review.   

 

Judge Ekstrom discussed the IGN network (like a pipeline) and said the best explanation was there 

was more data going into Benton County so the issue was to decide what the equitable arrangement 

was between the two counties.  He said their sum total of the interest in the matter was that they 

be able to do their job efficiently.  

 

Ms. Smith Kelty said one of the questions was whether they wanted to still continue with Odyssey, 

which is what Franklin County was using.   

 

Commissioner Delvin said his bottom line was to make sure Franklin County was paying its share.  

Chairman Small agreed and said he wanted to make sure Benton County was not subsidizing 

Franklin County.   

 

Commissioner Beaver asked about size of “pipeline” and Ms. Austin said they requested that 

Benton County’s be increased and it was increased at the State’s cost.     

 

Mr. Sparks said he thought they were looking at taking Superior Court to the cloud and not using 

the Benton County server and creating one specific for Superior Court so it would be joint owned 

with joint liabilities and joint responsibility for public records. Ms. Austin said it was her 

understanding that IT was testing that method with another department before moving the Courts 

to it.  She added they did not disagree with that method but were told it could not be accomplished 

by December.   



 - 3 - 

Mr. Sparks said he would talk with IT to get a status on that and he wanted to see it addressed in 

the agreement that there was funding to make it happen when it was ready. 

 

Judge Swisher added he thought maybe the agreement should be between the Courts and the cloud 

server.   

 

The Board agreed to move forward and include provisions for including cloud storage for Superior 

Court in the agreement. 

 

WSU Update 

 

Marianne Ophardt announced she would be retiring effective October 31, 2016 and that WSU 

Extension would be appointing Gwen-Alyn Hoheisel to administrate the extension office. 

 

Ms. Ophardt updated the Board on the following: 

 

 Community gardening (Plant a Row for the Hungry) doing well - raised $11,000 

 Grant for $10,000 for United Way to build more food gardens 

 Juvenile Justice garden – benefits to the community  

 Census of Agriculture –Eastern WA largest producer of organic apples in the United States 

 

Ms. Hoheisel updated the Board on the following: 

 

 Viticulture/Fruit Trees 

 Impact reports  

 Exotic pests – large impacts on the industry; have a team with a multi-million grant for 

research team; training master gardeners as first detector network to identify these bugs; 

delivering the same education to the growers; 

 Specialty crop research grant  

 

Other Business 

 

Mr. Sparks referred to item “a” on the consent agenda regarding ICMA and said it was pretty 

significant.  He gave credit to Ryan Brown for his work on the issue and said it would drastically 

reduce the fees the employees had to pay.  He said as an example, if you had $10,000 saved (in an 

index fund), the new fee paid would be $5/year.  He said by comparison, the NACO program 

would require the employee pay $122/year for the same amount of money. He said the County 

may need to look at NACO and request it match this ICMA program or consider moving away 

from NACO.  He said that Personnel also needed to let employees know about this program, 

especially the ones that had their money with NACO.   

 

The Board recessed at 9:40 a.m. for approximately five minutes and Mr. Lukson said the Board 

could potentially make a decision after the executive session. 

 

The Board came back into session at 9:47 a.m.   

 



 - 4 - 

Executive Session – Potential Litigation 

 

The Board went into executive session at 9:47 a.m. with DPA Ryan Lukson regarding potential 

litigation for approximately 10 minutes.  Also present were David Sparks, Loretta Smith Kelty, 

Ryan Brown, and Cami McKenzie.  The Board came out at 9:56 a.m.  Mr. Lukson stated the Board 

discussed potential litigation and took no action. 

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to authorize the PA’s office to file a complaint for 

declaratory relief on behalf of the County against Christopher Hupy regarding his request for 

judicial emails.  Commissioner Delvin seconded and upon vote, the motion carried.   

 

Vouchers 

 

Check Date: 07/11/2016 

 

P-Cards:  #0716 

Total all funds: $282,017.01 

 

Check Date:  07/15/2016 

 

Checks #: 142382-142522 

Total all funds:  $625,656.55 

 

Transfers #: 7151601-7151617 

Total all funds: $1,865,713.44 

 

Payroll Draw Checks 

Warrant #: 239797-239800 

Direct Deposit #: 115924-116105 

Total all funds:  $109,080.74 

 

Payroll Deductions/Transfers 

Taxes #: 101160715 

Total all funds:  $35,978.89 

 

Total amounts approved by fund can be reviewed in the Benton County Auditor’s Office. 

 

Resolutions 

 

2016-560: Closing Funds & Adding Replacement Funds to ICMA Retirement Corporate 

Accounts 

2016-561: 1st Amended Agreement w/NCourt LLC    

2016-562: Grant Application w/DSHS for Juvenile Detention Alternatives Initiative 

2016-563: District Court Public Defense Services Agreement w/M Prince 

2016-564: District Court Public Defense Services Agreement w/A Pechtel for Overflow Cases 



 - 5 - 

2016-565: Amended Public Defense Services Interlocal Agreement w/City of W Richland for 

Billing of Costs w/Mental Health Court  

2016-566: Amended Public Defense Services Interlocal Agreement w/City of Prosser for 

Billing of Costs w/Mental Health Court 

2016-567: Agreement w/Kiona-Benton City School District for Crime Prevention Program  

2016-568: Establishing New Speed Limit on Clodfelter Road 

2016-569: Contract w/ B.C.V., for Hanks Road & CR12 Pathway Asphalt Repair 

2016-570: Accepting Work Performed by B.C.V., for Fall 2015 Crack Seal Project 

2016-571: Accepting Work Performed by Fowler General Construction for Kennewick 

Maintenance Facility  

2016-572: Approval of Disbursements from the Historical Preservation Fund 

 

There being no further business before the Board, the meeting adjourned at approximately 9:56 

a.m.   

 

 

_______________________________   ______________________________ 

Clerk of the Board      Chairman 

 



Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc: Dept., Auditor C. McKenzie

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN 

CURRENT EXPENSE FUND NUMBER 0000-101, DEPARTMENT NUMBER 110.

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that 

funds shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto.

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

WEH
Text Box
a. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 110



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER FROM:  TRANSFER TO: 

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT

(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

518-302 4931 Contingency $35,000 518-302 3135 Maintenance/Repair Supplies $15,000

518-302 4804 Repair/Maintenance Other $10,000

518-302 4102 Contracts $10,000

TOTAL $35,000 TOTAL $35,000

Explanation:

Prepared by: Cami McKenzie Date:  18-Jul-2016

Approved q Denied q Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

Facilities/Jail Support - Need a line item transfer from contingency - estimated for next 3 months.  

Facilities

Current Expense

110

0000-101



 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date 07/19/16 
Subject:         Apollo Sheet Metal 
Prepared by:   J. Donley  
Reviewed by:   P.Schut 

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 
Execute Contract __X__ 
Pass Resolution  __X__  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 

 

Consent Agenda            __X__  
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

   
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 

The Benton County Fairgrounds solicited quotes from the following companies for the installation of 
a new HVAC system to replace the current system in Building 15 at the Benton County Fairgrounds. 
  

• Total Energy Management, Inc. – Richland, WA. - $11,734.23 including w.s.s.t 
• M. Campbell & Company, Inc. - Pasco, WA. - $10,713.39 including w.s.s.t 
• Apollo Sheet Metal, Inc. – Kennewick, WA. – $10,500.54 including w.s.s.t  

 
Proposals were reviewed and the recommendation is to move forward with a contract for said 
services with Apollo Sheet Metal, Inc. as the lowest bidder.   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve the attached Resolution and Contract between Benton County and Apollo Sheet Metal, 
Inc. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Not to exceed $10,500.54 including W.S.S.T to be paid from Fairgrounds O & M 0124101 
 
MOTION 
 
Move to approve the attached contract between Benton County and Apollo Sheet Metal, Inc.            
         
 

WEH
Text Box
b. Contract w/Apollo Sheet Metal, Inc. for Installation of Lennox Unit



Orig: Commissioners   J. Donley  
cc: Auditor; S. Araiza; Contract Management; F. Bowen; Apollo Sheet Metal, Inc.  

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY,  WASHINGTON:  
 
IN THE MATTER OF A CONTRACT BETWEEN BENTON COUNTY A ND APOLLO SHEET METAL, 
INC., FOR INSTALLATION OF A NEW LENNOX REPLACEMENT UNIT IN BUILDING 15 AT THE 
BENTON COUNTY FAIRGROUNDS 
 
WHEREAS, Per Resolution 2012-677, any public works services or materials involving less than $40,000 may be 
entered into after direct negotiation and authorization from the Board of Benton County Commissioners; and 
 
WHEREAS, proposals were solicited and received from the following contractors:  
 

• Total Energy Management, Inc. – Richland, WA. - $11,734.23 including w.s.s.t 
• M. Campbell & Company, Inc. - Pasco, WA. - $10,713.39 including w.s.s.t 
• Apollo Sheet Metal, Inc. – Kennewick, WA. – $10,500.54 including w.s.s.t  

 
And; 
 
WHEREAS, the Benton County Fairgrounds Office Manager reviewed the quotes and recommends awarding the 
installation of a new Lennox replacement unit in Building 15 at the Benton County Fairgrounds to Apollo Sheet 
Metal, Inc. as the lowest bidder for an amount not to exceed $10,500.54 including W.S.S.T. NOW, THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED , the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington hereby agrees with 
the recommendation and awards the installation of a new Lennox replacement unit in Building 15 at the Benton 
County Fairgrounds to Apollo Sheet Metal, Inc., for a contract amount not to exceed $10,500.54 including W.S.S.T; 
and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the contract shall begin upon execution by both parties and expire on December 
31st, 2016; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED , the Board hereby authorizes the Chairman to sign the service agreement attached 
hereto.  
 
Dated this . . . . . . . day of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , 20 . . . .  

       
Chairman of the Board  

 
       

Chairman Pro-Tem 
 

         
Member 

 
Constituting the Board of County 

Attest: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .      Commissioners of Benton County, 
 Clerk of the Board      Washington 
 
 
 
 







































AGENDA ITEM 
Meeting Date 07/26/16 
Subject:         Big D’s 
Prepared by:   J. Donley  
Reviewed by:   P.Schut  

TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 
Execute Contract __X__ 
Pass Resolution __X__ 
Pass Ordinance _____ 
Pass Motion _____ 
Other  _____ 

Consent Agenda   __X__ 
Public Hearing   _____ 
1st Discussion   _____ 
2nd Discussion   _____ 
Other   _____ 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

The Benton County Fairgrounds solicited quotes from the following companies for the installation of 
a new fresh water supply system to replace the current system in the horse facility at the Benton 
County Fairgrounds.   

• Sharpe & Preszler Construction, Inc. – Kennewick, WA. - $18,711.78 including w.s.s.t
• Bestebreur Bros. Construction, Inc. - Pasco, WA. - $30,693.62 including w.s.s.t
• 2F Enterprises – Kennewick, WA. – $21,177.00 including w.s.s.t
• Bauder Excavation – Benton City, WA - $17,376.00 including w.s.s.t
• Campbell Shaffer, LLC – Spanaway, WA - $16,290.00 including w.s.s.t
• TTap Construction – Kennewick, WA - $15,584.10 including w.s.s.t
• Allstar Construction Group, Inc. – West Richland, WA - $30,594.26 including w.s.s.t
• Goodman & Mehlenbacher – Kennewick, WA -$24,652.20 including w.s.s.t
• Silverline Electric & Plumbing – Kennewick, WA - $29,158.72 including w.s.s.t
• Big D’s Construction of Tri-Cities, Inc. – Pasco, WA - $13,792.20 including w.s.s.t

Proposals were reviewed and the recommendation is to move forward with a contract for said 
services with Big D’s Construction of Tri-Cities, Inc. as the lowest bidder.   

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve the attached Resolution and Contract between Benton County and Big D’s Construction of 
Tri-Cities, Inc. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Not to exceed $13,792.20 including W.S.S.T to be paid from Fairgrounds O & M 0124101 

MOTION 

Move to approve the attached contract between Benton County and Big D’s Construction of Tri-
Cities, Inc.      

WEH
Text Box
c. Contract w/Big D’s Construction of Tri-Cities, Inc. for Installation of Water Supply System



Orig: Commissioners  J. Donley 
cc: Auditor; S. Araiza; Contract Management; F. Bowen; Big D’s Construction of Tri-Cities, Inc.  

RESOLUTION 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:  

IN THE MATTER OF A CONTRACT BETWEEN BENTON COUNTY AND BIG D’S CONSTRUCTION 
OF TRI-CITIES, INC., FOR INSTALLATION OF A FRESH WATER SUPPLY SYSTEM AT THE 
BENTON COUNTY FAIRGROUNDS 

WHEREAS, Per Resolution 2012-677, any public works services or materials involving less than $40,000 may be 
entered into after direct negotiation and authorization from the Board of Benton County Commissioners; and 

WHEREAS, proposals were solicited and received from the following contractors: 
• Sharpe & Preszler Construction, Inc. – Kennewick, WA. - $18,711.78 including w.s.s.t
• Bestebreur Bros. Construction, Inc. - Pasco, WA. - $30,693.62 including w.s.s.t
• 2F Enterprises – Kennewick, WA. – $21,177.00 including w.s.s.t
• Bauder Excavation – Benton City, WA - $17,376.00 including w.s.s.t
• Campbell Shaffer, LLC – Spanaway, WA - $16,290.00 including w.s.s.t
• TTap Construction – Kennewick, WA - $15,584.10 including w.s.s.t
• Allstar Construction Group, Inc. – West Richland, WA - $30,594.26 including w.s.s.t
• Goodman & Mehlenbacher – Kennewick, WA -$24,652.20 including w.s.s.t
• Silverline Electric & Plumbing – Kennewick, WA - $29,158.72 including w.s.s.t
• Big D’s Construction of Tri-Cities, Inc. – Pasco, WA - $13,792.20 including w.s.s.t

And; 

WHEREAS, the Benton County Fairgrounds Office Manager reviewed the quotes and recommends awarding the 
installation of a fresh water supply system at the Benton County Fairgrounds to Big D’s Construction of Tri-Cities, 
Inc. as the lowest bidder for an amount not to exceed $13,792.20 including W.S.S.T. NOW, THEREFORE 

BE IT RESOLVED , the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington hereby agrees with 
the recommendation and awards the installation of a fresh water supply system at the Benton County Fairgrounds to 
Big D’s Construction of Tri-Cities, Inc., for a contract amount not to exceed $13,792.20 including W.S.S.T; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the contract shall begin upon execution by both parties and expire on December 
31st, 2016; and  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED , the Board hereby authorizes the Chairman to sign the service agreement attached 
hereto.  

Dated this . . . . . . . day of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , 20 . . . . 

Chairman of the Board 

Chairman Pro-Tem 

Member 

Constituting the Board of County 
Attest: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Commissioners of Benton County, 

Clerk of the Board Washington 















































WEH
Text Box
d. Amendment D w/WA State Dept of Commerce, Community Services & Housing Division













WEH
Text Box
e. Termination Letter for Greater Columbia Behavioral Health Contracts









WEH
Text Box
f. Contract w/J Blanco for Functional Family Therapy



























































WEH
Text Box
g. Payment Authorization to Tyco SimplexGrinnell System for Fire Alarm Monitoring









WEH
Text Box
h. Agreement w/Safe Harbor Crisis Nursery for My Friends Place for Overnight Youth Shelter











































Exhibit B: Progress Reporting & Measures Safe Harbor Crisis Nursery 
1111 N. Grant Place 
Kennewick, WA 99336 
(509) 554-4003 

 

 

 

 

PROJECT SUMMARY 
REPORT DATE PROJECT NAME PREPARED BY 
(Insert Date) Safe Harbor – My Friends Place Karen Kirk-Brockman 

Executive Director, Safe Harbor Crisis Nursery 

 

STATUS SUMMARY 
 
 
 
(Type brief status report here) 
 
 
 
 

 

MEASURABLES PROGRESS TO DATE 

Number of new teens enrolled in school/GED  

Number of teens that achieved diploma/GED  

Number of new teens in case management services  

2 outreach events performed each month  

25 new clients reached each outreach event  

Number of attendees at each parenting class  

 

BUDGET OVERVIEW 
 TOTAL BUDGET INVOICED REMAINING BUDGET 

Case Manager    

Supplies    

2nd Staff    

Supervision of Case Manager    

 

  

Submitted by Date 
 

Progress Report 



Description % of Funding Yearly Wage Hours per Week
Drop In Services 

(Food, Laundry, Bus Passes, Hygiene Kits, Tutoring Materials) Total

Case Manager 41.66% 24,000$            40 9,998$                                     

Supervision of Case Manager 20.83% 32,000              40 6,666                                       

2nd Staff 

(Accompany Case Manager on Field Visits)
8.33% 24,000              40 1,999                                       

Services for "Drop Ins" 41.66% 5,200$                                                                                         2,166                                       

20,830$                                   

Description % of Funding Yearly Wage Hours per Week
Drop In Services 

(Food, Laundry, Bus Passes, Hygiene Kits, Tutoring Materials) Total

Case Manager 100.00% 24,480$            40 24,480$                                   

Supervision of Case Manager 50.00% 32,640              40 16,320                                     

2nd Staff 

(Accompany Case Manager on Field Visits)
20.00% 24,480              40 4,896                                       

Services for "Drop Ins" 100.00% 5,304$                                                                                         5,304                                       

51,000$                                   

Description % of Funding Yearly Wage Hours per Week
Drop In Services 

(Food, Laundry, Bus Passes, Hygiene Kits, Tutoring Materials) Total

Case Manager 100.00% 24,970$            40 24,970$                                   

Supervision of Case Manager 50.00% 33,293              40 16,646                                     

2nd Staff 

(Accompany Case Manager on Field Visits)
20.00% 24,970              40 4,994                                       

Services for "Drop Ins" 100.00% 5,410$                                                                                         5,410                                       

52,020$                                   

123,850$                     

Staff Position % of Wages Hours Per Week Total Wages for the year

Four (4) Shelter Staff 100% 138 105,273$                                

Shelter Suppervisor 100% 100 32,000                                     

Employment Taxes 26,500                                     

L&I and Employment Security 8,032                                       

171,805$                                

Bill Cost

Benton PUD 4,572$                                     

City of Kennewick 2,212                                       

Frontier Communications 3,996                                       

Mortgage 12,510                                     

Property Insurance 3,894                                       

Cell Phone 625                                           

Kennewick Irrigation District 346                                           

Abadan 643                                           

28,798$                                   

Item Cost

Office Supplies 480$                                        

Food 5,000                                       

5,480$                                     

206,083$                     Total Yearly Cost of Supporting Budget Items (Not Inlcuding Public Safety Funds)

Copier Services

Total

2017

Total Funding 2017

26,500                                                  

8,032$                                                  

Total

Miscellaneous Expenses
Description

Total Funding 2016 (Prorated August - December)

2016

Yearly Wage/Cost

105,273$                                             

32,000                                                  

2018

Exhibit C: Total Program Funding (August 1, 2016 - December 31, 2018)

Total Funding 2018

8/1/2016 - 12/31/2018Exhibit C: My Friends Place Project Budget

Yearly Supporting Budget Items

Pens, paper, binders, printer ink, etcetera

Food for Teens Meals

Description

Shelter Related Bills (Average Costs Based on Previous Year Bills)

Averaged Cost Based on Bills for Last Year

Averaged Cost Based on Bills for Last Year

Cost Listed is 50% ofBill Due to Phones and Internet are Shared Between Buildings

Mortgage on Building

Cost Listed is 50% ofBill Due to Coverage is Applied to Both Buildings

Cell Phone for Leaving Building

Staff Hours and Wages for the Year

Total 

Averaged Cost Based on Bills for Last Year





WEH
Text Box
i. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0101-101, Dept. 500







WEH
Text Box
j. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 125





 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: July 26, 2016        
Subject: License/Hold Harmless 

Agreement w/ City of 
Kennewick 

Prepared by: L. Small       
Reviewed by: Ryan Lukson 

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract _X   _ 
Pass Resolution  _____  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   ____ 

 
Consent Agenda           _X   _ 
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION/ SUMMARY 
 
The City of Kennewick and the Benton County by and for the Benton County Sheriff’s Office has a current 
License and Hold Harmless Agreement for the purpose of establishing the terms and conditions of use for 
the Kennewick Firearms Range Facility, with an expiration date of December 31, 2016.  
 
Both parties would like to enter into another License and Hold Harmless Agreement for calendar years 
2017 & 2018. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve the attached Resolution and License and Hold Harmless Agreement between the City of 
Kennewick and Benton County by and for the Benton County Sheriff’s Office.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
No Fiscal Impact – There are no fees associated with this agreement. 
 
 
MOTION 
 
Consent Agenda  
 

WEH
Text Box
k. Agreement w/City of Kennewick for Use of Kennewick Firearms Range Facility



Orig: BCSO  
Cc: Auditor, S. Araiza, City of Kennewick  L. Small 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
Dated this _________ day of ____________________, 2016  
 
 
 
 

       
Chairman of the Board  

 
       

Chairman Pro-Tem 
 

                
Member 

 
Attest:_____________________________ 

Clerk of the Board      Constituting the Board of County  
Commissioners of Benton County, Washington 

               
 

IN THE MATTER OF A LICENSE AND HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF KENNEWICK AND BENTON COUNTY BY AND FOR 
THE BENTON COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE FOR THE PURPOSE OF USE FOR 
THE KENNEWICK FIREARMS RANGE FACILITY 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Kennewick and the Benton County by and for the Benton County 
Sheriff’s Office has a current License and Hold Harmless Agreement for the purpose of 
establishing the terms and conditions of use for the Kennewick Firearms Range Facility, which 
is set to expire December 31, 2016; and  
 
WHEREAS, the use of this facility is for organized training events and routine target practice 
conducted by Benton County Sheriff’s Office and its officers; and  
 
WHEREAS, both parties would like to renew the License and Hold Harmless Agreement for 
calendar years 2017 & 2018; NOW, THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners hereby authorize the 
Chairman of the Board to sign the attached License and Hold Harmless Agreement between 
the City of Kennewick and Benton County; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the term of this agreement shall commence January 1, 2017 
and shall terminate on December 31, 2018.  
 



LICENSE/HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT – Page 1 

 
LICENSE/HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT 

 
 

This License and Hold Harmless Agreement (“AGREEMENT”) is hereby entered into between 
the City of Kennewick (“CITY”), a municipal corporation and Benton County by and for the 
Benton County Sheriff’s Office (“LICENSEE”), for purposes of establishing the terms and 
conditions of use for the Kennewick Firearms Range facility for organized training events and 
routine target practice conducted by Benton County Sheriff’s Office and its officers.  
 

I.   RECITALS 
 
WHEREAS, the CITY has authorized the use of the Kennewick Firearms Range facility for 
LICENSEE; and  
 
WHEREAS, as a condition of use of the Kennewick Firearms Range facility, the CITY has 
required a License and Hold Harmless Agreement to be executed by both parties; NOW, 
THEREFORE  
 
THE PARTIES AGREE HERETO AS FOLLOWS: 

II.   AGREEMENT 
 
1. License.  

 
It is agreed and understood that LICENSEE shall have use of the Kennewick Firearms 
Range for firearms training and routine target practice and agrees to abide by the CITY’s 
range rules. LICENSEE agrees that officers will use protective equipment whenever 
shooting, including proper eyewear, hearing protection, and bulletproof vest. LICENSEE 
further agrees that all organized training events, as well as routine target practice 
involving five or more law enforcement officers, shall be supervised by a certified 
firearms instructor from that law enforcement agency.  

 
2.  Hold Harmless.  
 

(a)  It is agreed and understood that LICENSEE shall defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless the CITY, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers from and 
against all claims, suits, actions or liabilities, for injury or death of any person, or 
for loss or damage to property which arises out of the LICENSEES’ use of the 
Firearms Range or from any activity, work or thing done, permitted or suffered by 
LICENSEE, in or about the Firearms Range. The LICENSEE’s indemnity 
obligation herein does not extend to claims, suits, actions, or liabilities associated 
with negligence or other wrongful conduct by the CITY or its officers, officials, 
employees and volunteers. 

 
(b)  It is agreed and understood that the CITY shall defend, indemnify and hold 

harmless the LICENSEE, its employees, agents, or affiliates from and against all 



LICENSE/HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT – Page 2 

claims, suits, actions or liabilities, for injury or death of any person, or for loss or 
damage to property which arises out of the CITY’s use of the Firearms Range or 
from any activity, work or thing done, permitted or suffered by the CITY, in or 
about the Firearms Range.  The CITY’s indemnity obligation herein does not 
extend to claims, suits, actions, or liabilities associated with negligence or other 
wrongful conduct by the LICENSEE or its employees, agents, or affiliates.  

 
(c) The provisions of this section shall survive the expiration or termination of this 

AGREEMENT.  
 
3. Notices. In the event of any incident or claim, the LICENSEE shall provide notice as set 

forth below:  
 

City of Kennewick:     Benton County Sheriff’s Office: 
  
Risk Management Coordinator   Jerry Hatcher, Undersheriff  
210 W. 6th Avenue     7122 W. Okanogan Place, Bldg. B 
Kennewick, WA 99336    Kennewick, WA 99336 
(509) 585-4354     (509) 783-1451 Ext. 3260 
 
Randy Maynard, Sergeant    Lexi Wingfield, Personnel Manager  
Kennewick Police Department   Benton County Personnel Office  
211 W. 6th Avenue     7122 W. Okanogan Place, Bldg. B  
Kennewick, WA 99336    Kennewick, WA 99336 
(509) 585-1313     (509) 737-2777 

 
  
   





 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: July 26, 2016    
Subject: Contract Extension 

w/Energy Northwest  
Prepared by: L. Small       
Reviewed by: Ryan Lukson 

   

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract __X_ _  
Pass Resolution  __X__  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
Consent Agenda           __X   _ 
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION/ SUMMARY 
 
The Benton County Sheriff’s Office (BCSO) entered into a contract with Energy Northwest on June 30, 2003 to 
provide specialized law enforcement services on an as needed basis per contract number 314952 for the 
consideration of $20,000 per year paid to the County.  
 
The Benton County Sheriff and Energy Northwest signed contract amendments numbers 001 through 006 over the 
years to extend the agreement through December 31, 2016 with an overall contract amount not to exceed $250,400. 
 
Amendment No. 006 extended the agreement four years with a start date of 1/1/13 thru 12/31/16; however, there 
was a discrepancy in the amendment value which shorted the annual agreement amount by $20,000. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve the attached Contract Amendment No. 007 to extend the current agreement between Benton County 
Sheriff’s Office and Energy Northwest through December 31, 2017 and increase the overall contract amount not to 
exceed $290,400. 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM  
 
Ryan Lukson  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Revenue in the amount of $20,000 each year for 2016 & 2017. 
 
MOTION 
 
Consent Agenda  

WEH
Text Box
l. Contract Extension w/Energy Northwest for Law Enforcement Services



Orig: BCSO 
         Auditor; PA Office, Energy NW  L. Small 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 
IN THE MATTER OF THE CONTRACT EXTENSION BETWEEN THE BENTON COUNTY 
SHERIFF’S OFFICE AND ENERGY NORTHWEST TO PROVIDE SPECIALIZED LAW 
ENFORCEMENT SERVICES ON AN AS NEEDED BASIS 
 
WHEREAS, the Benton County Sheriff’s Office (BCSO) entered into a contract with Energy Northwest 
on June 30, 2003 to provide specialized law enforcement services on an as needed basis per contract number 
314952 for the consideration of $20,000 per year paid to the County; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Benton County Sheriff and Energy Northwest signed contract amendments numbers 001 
through 006 over the years to extend the agreement through December 31, 2016 with an overall contract 
amount not to exceed $250,400; and  
 
WHEREAS, Amendment No. 006 extended the agreement four years with a start date of 1/1/13 thru 
12/31/16, however, there was a discrepancy in the amendment value which shorted the annual agreement 
amount by $20,000; and  
 
WHEREAS, the attached Amendment No. 007 is necessary as both parties wish to extend the agreement 
through December 31, 2017 and increase the contract amount to cover expenses for 2016 and 2017 with an 
overall contract amount not to exceed $290,400; NOW, THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington hereby 
approves the attached Contract Amendment No. 007 to extend the current agreement between Benton 
County Sheriff’s Office and Energy Northwest through December 31, 2017 and increase the overall contract 
amount not to exceed $290,400; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the term of the Agreement No. 314952 shall expire on December 31, 
2017; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, all other provisions of the Contract 314952 shall remain the same 
including Memo of Understanding dated May 19, 2005.  
 
Dated this __________ day of __________________, 2016 
 

       
Chairman  

 
       

Member 
      

                
Member 

 
Attest: ____________________________                             Constituting the Board of County Commissioners  

                           Clerk of the Board       of Benton County, Washington 
    



p—’

CONTRACT AMENDMENT

SAFETY CODE: G

ssued By: Linda Parrella, Contracts Lead

Contractor: Benton County Sheriff
7320 West Quinault
Kennewick, WA 99336

Contract Number: 314952
Amendment Number: 7
Amendment Date: April 20, 2016

1. DESCRIPTION OF AMENDMENT

The subject Contract is herein amended to incorporate the following:

A. DescriQtion of Change:

Clarify that the quarterly payment for continued service is $5,000/quarter
• For the Minimum Scope of Insurance, add the statement “Beriton County

is allowed to be insured through a Risk Pool
• Extend the contract term for one (1) calendar year
• Increase the contract funding

B. Period of Performance:

Extend the contract term to December 31, 2017.

C, Consideration:

As a result of this Amendment, the not to exceed Contract Price shall be increased
by the sum of $40,000 which amount the Contractor acknowledges is the
maximum price for the work included in this Amendment. This Amendment shall
not provide any basis for any other payments to or claims by the Contractor as a
result of or arising out of the performance of the work described herein.

The total not to exceed Contract Price is $290,400 which amount the Contractor
acknowledges is the maximum Contract Price for the work including changes
incorporated by this Amendment.

Contract 314952
Amendment 7

1 of 2





Legal Financial Obligation 
(LFO) Financial Impact

Status as of 6/30/2016

WEH
Text Box
LFO Impact Update ~ L Smith-Kelty & Team



Monthly District Court Caseload – 2016 vs 2015

1601
1795

1914

1560

2033

1587

1963 2060 1966

1703

2167 2161

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

Jan Feb Mar April May June

Monthly District Court Infractions

2015 2016

260 265 256 251 256

301

225 233 244

200

234

190

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

Jan Feb Mar April May June

Monthly District Court Criminal

2015 2016



Current Expense Fund – 2013 through 2016 

2013 2014 2015 2016

• General Government $1,106,243 $1,119,838 $1,289,681 $1,232,097

• Public Safety $   226,853 $   228,277 $   173,469 $   138,182

• SC Felony/Misdeam. Penalties $   464,894 $   446,658 $   502,833 $   435,077

• Civil Infra. Penalties $1,161,625 $1,123,344 $   967,697 $   471,516

• Criminal Traffic Misdeam. Penalties $    405,463 $   394,092 $   358,206 $   272,136

• Criminal Non-Traffic Fines $    103,307 $   101,904 $     87,261 $     54,136

• Criminal Costs $    632,758 $   616,748 $   474,871 $   497,325

• Interest Other Earnings $    194,906 $   182,419 $   194,939 $   163,181

$4,296,049 $4,213,307 $4,048,957 $3,263,650



Current Expense Fund - 2015 vs 2016 

2015 2016 Variance

• General Government $1,289,681 $1,232,097 $     (57,585)

• Public Safety $   173,469 $   138,182 $     (35,287)

• SC Felony/Misdemeanor Penalties $   502,833 $   435,077 $     (67,756)

• Civil Infra. Penalties $   967,697 $   471,516 $   (496,181)

• Criminal Traffic Misdemeanor Penalties $   358,206 $   272,136 $     (86,070)

• Criminal Non-Traffic Fines $     87,261 $     54,136 $     (33,125)   

• Criminal Costs $   474,871 $   497,325 $       22,454

• Interest Other Earnings $   194,939 $   163,181 $     (31,758)

$4,048,957 $3,263,650 $   (785,308)



Average Jail Population – 2016 vs 2015

399 424 409 419 428 438

330
369

348 355
319 303

0

100

200

300

400

500

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

Average Local Jail Population

2015 2016

179
197

177
159 149

121129
144 131

154 150

165

0

50

100

150

200

250

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

Average Contract Jail Population

2015 2016



 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date:  7/26/2016        
Subject: Clofelter Road 

area – Road 
closures during 
construction 

Prepared by:       MSR       
Reviewed by:                  

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract _____ 
Pass Resolution  ___  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

Information Only            XX 

 
Consent Agenda            

_____  
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            __X___ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

  
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
The City of Kennewick has been constructing a route connecting Steptoe Blvd to its Southridge Area.  The 
proposed road is called Bob Olson Parkway.  Some portions of the work have been completed such as the 
round-about at the intersection of 10th Ave, Clodfelter Road and Step Toe Blvd (5 corners).  Other portions of 
the project are currently under way. 
 
In order to complete the connection portions of Clodfelter Road and 10th Avenue, which are currently County 
Roads, must be reconfigured.  The City has developed construction plans for the necessary changes and 
has worked with the Road Department through that process.  In order to prosecute the work certain portions 
of those roads will need to be temporarily closed for construction.  The City has developed a phasing plan 
that includes road closures, temporary connections and rerouting of traffic through the area. 
 
The City of Kennewick Public Works Director, Cary Roe, has prepared a brief presentation that goes over 
the proposed reconfiguration of the roads in this area during construction. 
  
SUMMARY 
Portions of Clodfelter Road and 10th Avenue need to be rerouted to align with the City of Kennewick Bob 
Olson Parkway Project.  The City of Kennewick Public Works Director, Cary Roe, will provide a brief 
presentation on the plan to route traffic through the area during construction. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
No action by the Board is needed, the presentation is informational. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
None.  The project construction is completely funded by the City of Kennewick. 
 
MOTION 
No action by the Board is needed, the presentation is informational. 
 

WEH
Text Box
Road Construction Closure ~ M Rasmussen



CLODFELTER ROAD
CLOSURES, CONNECTIONS

AND
TIMEFRAMES

Leading the Way



CONNECTIONS TO CLODFELTER ROAD
OVERALL VIEW



CONNECTIONS TO CLODFELTER ROAD
W. 10TH AVE. CONNECTION



CONNECTIONS TO CLODFELTER ROAD 
W. 15TH PL. CONNECTION



CONNECTIONS TO CLODFELTER ROAD
FINAL CONNECTIONS



 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date:  July 26, 2016     

  

Subject: Old Engineers 

Bldg.  

 

Prepared by:      Fred Bowen        

    

Reviewed by:                  

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract _____ 

Pass Resolution  _____ 

Pass Ordinance  _____  

Pass Motion  __X__ 

Other   _____ 

 
 

Consent Agenda            _____  

Public Hearing            _____  

1st Discussion            __X__ 

2nd Discussion            _____ 

Other             _____  

   

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
March 15, 2016 the Board approved a Feasibility Study to determine the Structural Condition of the Old Engineering 
Building. Reports indicated the building appears to be in good overall condition. 

 

SUMMARY 
 
Modernization of the entire facility would include new interior finishes, electrical, mechanical, plumbing, roofing, doors, 
windows, ADA elevator/ramp/entry stairs, restrooms and repointing some of the exterior brick veneer.  
 
Approximately 5,900 sq. ft.  
 
Relocating the Planning Dept. to the newly renovated building would allow for the sale of the Planning Annex and 
parking lots offsetting some of the construction costs.  
 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Estimated Costs to modernization of the entire facility is between $1.5 million to $1.55 million.  
Planning Annex and parking lots total appraised value is estimated at $224,000 offsetting some of the cost to $1.326 
million 

 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
Public Service Administrator recommends that the Board of Benton County Commissioner approve entering into a 
contract with CKJT Architects for the development of the construction plans and specification for the renovation of the 
Old Engineering Bldg. located behind the Courthouse 
 

MOTION 
 
Move that the Board of Benton County Commissioners approve the Public Services Administrator to proceed with 
forming a Contract with CKJT for the development of construction plans and specification for the renovation of the Old 
Engineering Bldg. 

 

WEH
Text Box
Old Engineering Building Renovation Design ~ F Bowen



WEH
Text Box
Quarterly Finance Update ~ P Schut


























	Timed - 2 Road Closure.pdf
	ADP7637.tmp
	CLODFELTER ROAD
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5


	Timed - 3 Old Engineering Bldg.pdf
	BACKGROUND INFORMATION
	SUMMARY
	MOTION




